
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu)

1

CS/NG

Dydd Iau, 30 Mai 2024

Jan Kelly / 01352 702301
janet.kelly@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng Dave Mackie (Cadeirydd)

Cynghorwyr: Marion Bateman, Paul Cunningham, Adele Davies-Cooke, Mared Eastwood, 
Roz Mansell, Debbie Owen a Andrew Parkhurst
ENWADAU CREFYDDOL:
Cynrychiolwyr yr Eglwys yng Nghymru 
(esgobaeth Llanelwy)
Jennie Downes (Swyddfa’r Diocesan)
Marina Parsons (Pennaeth Ysgol Trelawnyd)
Cynrychiolwyr Catholig
Wendy White 
John Morgan (Ysgol Gynradd Gatholid St 
Anthony)
Eglwys Bresbyteraidd Cymru (Saesneg - 
Presbytri Swydd Gaer Fflint a Dinbych
Rev. Huw Powell Davies
Ann Smith

CYMDEITHASAU ATHRAWON:
Penaethiaid Uwchradd
Catherine McCormack (Ysgol Uwchradd 
Gatholig St Richard)
Ffederasiwn Penaethiaid Cynradd
Anna Stephens (Ysgol Wirfoddol a 
Gynorthwyir Sant Ioan Fedyddiwr)
Arbenigwr AG Uwchradd
Lyn Oakes (Ysgol Uwchradd Alun)
Cynrychiolydd Coleg VI Glannau Dyfrdwy
Robert Hughes (Coleg Cambria)
Athrawon Dosbarth Cynradd
Amira Mattar (Ysgol Gynradd Gymunedol 
Westwood)
Cynrychiolydd Ysgolion Arbennig 
Julian Lewis (Ysgol Pen Coch) 

Annwyl Syr / Fadam

Bydd cyfarfod o’r CYSAG SIR Y FLINT / CYNGOR YMGYNGHOROL SEFYDLOG 
(CYS)  yn cael ei gynnal yn CYFARFOD MYNYCHU O BELL  DYDD MERCHER, 
5ED MEHEFIN, 2024 am 4.00 PM i ystyried yr eitemau canlynol.

Yn gywir

Steven Goodrum
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor. Bydd recordiad o’r 
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home
Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch ag aelod o’r Tîm Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd ar 01352 702345.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


2

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD: COD YMDDYGIAD LLYWODRAETH LEOL 
Caiff aelodau eu hatgoffa fod rhaid iddynt ddatgan bodolaeth a natur y 
cysylltiad personol y maent yn ei ddatgan.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 5 - 8)
Cymeradwyo a chadarnhau bod cofnodion y cyfarfod diwethaf yn gywir.

4 DADANSODDIAD O ADRODDIADAU AROLYGU (Tudalennau 9 - 12)
Derbyn adroddiad gan Vicky Barlow, Uwch Reolwr ar gyfer Gwella Ysgolion, y 
Portffolio Addysg ac Ieuenctid.

5 ADBORTH O GYFARFOD WASACRE 5 MAWRTH 
Cofnodion drafft eisoes wedi’u dosbarthu.

6 CYLCH GORCHWYL DRAFFT Y CYNGOR YMGYNGHOROL SEFYDLOG 
(Tudalennau 13 - 20)
Cyflwyniad ar y ddogfen ddrafft gan Kim Brookes, Uwch Reolwr, Cymorth 
Busnes a Llywodraethu Ysgolion, Portffolio Addysg ac Ieuenctid

DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD I WYBODAETH) 1985 - 
YSTYRIED GWAHARDD Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD

Mae’r eitem a ganlyn yn cael ei hystyried fel eitem eithriedig yn rhinwedd 
Paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 4 Atodiad 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y 
cafodd ei diwygio).
Mae budd y cyhoedd mewn dal y wybodaeth yn ôl yn gorbwyso budd y 
cyhoedd mewn datgelu'r wybodaeth.

7 ENWEBU AELOD CYFETHOLEDIG 
I dderbyn diweddariad llafar.

8 GOHEBIAETH 
9 CYFARFODYDD YN Y DYFODOL 

Cynhelir cyfarfodydd yn y dyfodol yn 4.00 pm ar y dyddiadau canlynol.

Dydd Iau  21 Tachwedd 2024
Dydd Mercher 5 Chwefror 2025
Dydd Mercher 4 Mehefin  2025



3

Nodyn Gweithdrefnol ar redeg cyfarfodydd

Bydd y Cadeirydd yn agor y cyfarfodydd ac yn cyflwyno eu hunain.

Bydd nifer o Gynghorwyr yn mynychu cyfarfodydd. Bydd swyddogion hefyd yn 
mynychu cyfarfodydd i gyflwyno adroddiadau, gyda swyddogion Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd yn trefnu a chynnal y cyfarfodydd.  

Gofynnir i bawb sy’n mynychu i sicrhau bod eu ffonau symudol wedi diffodd a bod 
unrhyw sain gefndirol yn cael ei gadw mor dawel â phosib.  

Dylai’r holl feicroffonau gael eu rhoi “ar miwt” yn ystod y cyfarfod a dim ond pan 
fyddwch yn cael eich gwahodd i siarad gan y Cadeirydd y dylid eu rhoi ymlaen. Pan 
fydd gwahoddedigion wedi gorffen siarad dylen nhw roi eu hunain yn ôl “ar miwt”.

Er mwyn mynegi eu bod nhw eisiau siarad bydd Cynghorwyr yn defnyddio’r 
cyfleuster ‘chat’ neu yn defnyddio’r swyddogaeth ‘raise hand’ sy’n dangos eicon codi 
llaw electronig. Mae’r swyddogaeth ‘chat’ hefyd yn gallu cael ei ddefnyddio i ofyn 
cwestiynau, i wneud sylwadau perthnasol ac yn gyfle i’r swyddog gynghori neu 
ddiweddaru’r cynghorwyr.

Bydd y Cadeirydd yn galw ar y siaradwyr, gan gyfeirio at aelod etholedig fel 
‘Cynghorydd’ a swyddogion yn ôl eu teitl swydd h.y. Prif Weithredwr neu enw.  O 
bryd i’w gilydd mae’r swyddog sy’n cynghori’r Cadeirydd yn egluro pwyntiau 
gweithdrefnol neu’n awgrymu geiriad arall ar gyfer cynigion er mwyn cynorthwyo’r 
Pwyllgor. 

Os, a phan y cynhelir pleidlais, mi fydd y Cadeirydd yn egluro mai dim ond y rheiny 
sy’n gwrthwynebu’r cynnig/cynigion, neu sy’n dymuno ymatal a fydd angen mynegi.  
Bydd y swyddog sy’n cynghori’r Cadeirydd yn mynegi os bydd y cynigion yn cael eu 
derbyn. 

Os oes angen pleidlais fwy ffurfiol, bydd hynny yn ôl galwad enwau – lle gofynnir i 
bob Cynghorydd yn ei dro (yn nhrefn yr wyddor) sut mae ef / hi yn dymuno 
pleidleisio.

Yng nghyfarfodydd Pwyllgorau Cynllunio a Chyngor Sir mae amseroedd siaradwyr 
yn gyfyngedig.  Bydd cloch yn cael ei chanu i roi gwybod i’r siaradwyr bod ganddyn 
nhw funud ar ôl. 

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd recordiad o’r 
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
SACRE COMMITTEE
7 FEBRUARY 2024

Minutes of the meeting of the SACRE Committee of Flintshire County Council held 

virtually on the 7 February 2024

IN ATTENDANCE:
Elected Members:   Cllr A Parkhurst (AP); Cllr Mared Eastwood (ME); Cllr Marion 

Bateman (MB); Cllr Adele Davies-Cooke (AD); Cllr Debbie Owen 

Presbyterian Church of Wales representatives: Rev Huw Powell Davies (HD); 

Ann Smith (AS)

Primary schools’ representative:  Amira Mattar (Westwood CP School) 

Special School representative: Julian Lewis, Ysgol Pen Coch

Education Representatives: Vicky Barlow (VB), Senior Manager School 

Improvement. 

Also, in attendance, Kim Brookes (KB), Senior Manager, Education & Youth (Clerk); 

Nic Gittens, Democratic Services Clerk;   

NG confirmed meeting being recorded.    
 
Clerk welcomed colleagues to the meeting. It was confirmed that the numbers present 

meant the meeting was quorate, however as apologies received from Chair, Cllr DM 

and Vice Chair not present, Clerk asked for nomination of acting Chair for the meeting.

It was agreed Cllr ME appointed as Chair for the meeting.
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Cllr Paul Cunningham; Cllr Roz Mansell; Catherine McCormack; Lyn Oakes; 

Cllr Dave Mackie; Jennie Downes

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – CODE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONDUCT 

None declared but noting those Elected members who are school governors.

3. MINUTES OF MEETINGS HELD 23 NOVEMBER 2023

Agreed: minutes accepted as a true record. 

Tudalen 5

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3



Matters arising: VB confirmed details of WASACRE Conference had been circulated 

to group and the Annual Report published.

 

4. ANALYSIS OF INSPECTION REPORTS  

VB referred to the report circulated with the agenda and the Estyn findings in the 

reports for 4 schools published this term and pleased to note that no schools had 

received recommendations around RVE. 

VB highlighted particularly the report at 3.4 to illustrate the focus of inspection of RVE 

appropriately with the Curriculum for Wales (CfW) but a need to strengthen pupils’ 

learning through authentic experiences in their locality.

At 5.5 of the report, VB pleased to note that the school is acknowledged for 

progressing the Curriculum. 

Cllr ME thanked Officers for their work in supporting schools and Committee accepted 

the report.   

5 CRITERIA FOR CO-OPTION OF MEMBERS

To receive a verbal report from Kim Brookes, Clerk to the Committee (Senior Manager 

Business Support and School Governance, Education and Youth Portfolio).

Clerk advised the Committee that although the existing terms of refence, for SACRE, 

do provide for co-opted membership, this is not currently applied. Therefore, 

Committee is asked to consider, going forward, criteria for the nomination of Co-opted 

Membership, that is: 

•          how many, 

•          for what ‘purpose’,  

•          how long they are co-opted for 

•          whether they have voting rights 

Consideration of any nominations in accordance with agreed criteria would be 

confidential agenda item (exclusion of public). Criteria for coopted members to also be 

included in future revisions to terms of reference.

Tudalen 6



Cllr AP asked Committee to consider what the National Census statistics on religious 

belief provide and how we might engage with different communities. 

HD asked if consideration could be given to review representation from wider church 

bodies and co-opt more representatives. Clerk advised that whilst they could be 

considered as a co-opted member, the membership of Committee A under the 

proposed new terms for the SAC could provide for inclusion of wider religious 

representation. 

Cllr ME proposed that consideration could be given to co-opt to support specific 

projects/committee interests, and that it could be a two year appointment with no 

voting rights.  

Agreed: consideration of co-opted members on these terms.   

6.  TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL (SAC)

To receive a verbal update on the proposed timetable from Kim Brookes, Clerk to the 

Committee (Senior Manager Business Support and School Governance, Education 

and Youth Portfolio).

 

Clerk advised that under the regulations, each new Standing Advisory Committee 

(SAC) will require a Constitution and Terms of Reference to be agreed and in place 

from September 2026.  WASCARE have advised Authorities that a ‘shadow’ SAC may 

co-exist with the same constitution and terms of reference of the existing SACRE, and 

that both bodies need to be in place until the end of the 2025/26 academic year, after 

which, SACRE will dissolve, and SAC will continue.  

Clerk advised that as the existing SACRE is a statutory committee and its terms 

included in the Council’s Constitution, changes to terms of reference require approval 

through the Council’s appropriate Committee cycle. The following draft timetable was 

proposed.

Tudalen 7



1/ The draft constitution and terms of refence for SAC applicable from September 

2026, to be in draft form by summer term meeting 2024, and presented to 

meeting for consultation

2/ Final draft following any changes from consultation to be agreed at Autumn Term 

2024   meeting

3/ scheduled through committee cycle – COT – constitution Committee – Cabinet 

during Spring term 2025

Agreed: to submit draft for consideration at the June 2024 meeting.

7. CORRESPONDENCE

VB referred to the correspondence, circulated to the Committee, from the Secretary to 

WASACE inviting SAC / SACREs to make nominations for new members of the 

WASACRE Executive Committee. It was noted, that in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of the nomination, as Flintshire SACRE already has a representative on the 

Executive Committee (VB), then we are not able to make a further nomination at this 

time, but that we as a Committee are able to nominate a person from another 

SAC/SACRE.  

Action: Clerk to seek clarification from the WASACRE Secretary on how this is to be 

done and given that the Committee is not scheduled to meet before the closing date 

for nominations. 

8. WASACRE CONFERENCE JUNE 13, 2024
Diary marker circulated previously to members.

9. FUTURE MEETINGS
Future meetings will be held at 4pm on the following dates:

Wednesday 5 June 2024

 
Chair thanked Committee members and Officers for their attendance.  Meeting 
ended 16.37pm

   
 

Tudalen 8



Analysis of Estyn Inspection Reports

Flintshire SACRE /SAC

June 2024

Reports published in spring term 2024

School Inspection by Estyn  
Queensferry CP November 2023
Penarlag CP December 2023 
Ysgol Bryn Gwalia December 2023
The Hafod Federation – Ysgol Y Waun 
and Ysgol Gwernymynydd 

January 2024 (pilot 
arrangements)

Ysgol Treffynnon January 2024 (pilot 
arrangements)

Ysgol Bryn Deva January 2024

1. Inspection Area: Learning 

No comments relating specifically to Religion, Values and Ethics

2. Inspection Area: Wellbeing and attitudes to Learning

2.1 Most pupils develop a broad understanding of cultural diversity and eagerly share 
what they have learnt about the local environment and its history. Most pupils 
enjoy celebrating their own culture and language and that of their peers and have an 
appropriate understanding of what it is like to live in modern day Wales. They 
demonstrate a broad understanding of cultural diversity through their study of 
different faiths. This leads to pupils showing respect for the beliefs of others and an 
understanding that society is multi-cultural. (Queensferry CP) 

2.2 Pupils have a growing awareness of their roles as responsible citizens. They 
actively influence their own lives and the lives of others in their community and beyond, 
through participating in a range of worthwhile fundraising activities. These help to 
support pupils to understand the plight of those less fortunate than themselves and 
develop as informed and ethical citizens. (Penarlag CP) 

2.3 They enjoy learning about one another’s cultures, languages and beliefs. By 
the time they reach Year 6, most pupils develop a good knowledge and 

Tudalen 9

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4



understanding of their rights as children. The work of the school pupil rights 
ambassadors promotes this effectively. (Ysgol Bryn Gwalia)

2.4 Most pupils are becoming ethically informed citizens, and many speak knowledgably 
about their rights as children. They enjoy helping others and engage positively in 
active global citizenship. For example, following their teacher’s visit to Lesotho, pupils 
consider the importance of their contribution to and impact on creating a caring 
society. (Ysgol Bryn Deva)

2.5 Staff ensure that helping pupils to develop their social and moral 
understanding is a high priority. Staff show care, respect and kindness to pupils and 
to each other. (Ysgol Bryn Deva) 

3. Inspection Area: Teaching and Learning Experiences

3.1 The school’s curriculum is broad and balanced. Staff have worked closely with 
pupils, parents and governors to create a vision for the school’s curriculum. They 
ensure that the curriculum is relevant and accessible to all pupils. They use creative 
teaching approaches to engage pupils in a wide range of interesting learning 
experiences that build on their previous learning and develop their skills suitably. 
(Queensferry CP)

3.2 Teachers provide worthwhile opportunities for pupils to develop an awareness of 
their locality, Wales and Welsh culture and ‘cynefin’. (Ysgol Bryn Deva) 

3.3 The school provides a broad and balanced curriculum. Through this, teachers plan 
an interesting range of learning experiences. These support pupils to develop their 
knowledge and skills well. Teachers ensure that pupils contribute their ideas suitably 
to planning and this motivates pupils to engage well in their learning. The school 
enriches its curriculum successfully through visits and activities within the school 
grounds, local area and further afield. (Ysgol Bryn Gwalia) 

3.4 The school has based its curriculum around topics that cover the areas of learning 
and experience in Curriculum for Wales. Area leads provide teachers with useful 
information to help them with their termly plans. (Ysgol Penarlag)

4. Inspection Area: Care, Support and Guidance

4.1 Whole-school acts of collective worship provide worthwhile contributions to pupils’ 
spiritual and moral development through opportunities for pupils to reflect on important 
aspects of life (Queensferry CP) 

Tudalen 10



4.2 Provision for pupils’ spiritual, moral, social and cultural development is sound. 
Across the school, pupils have a good range of opportunities to be involved in the arts 
such as through drama activities in class, Christmas and end of year productions and 
through good provision for art within the curriculum. A local church group regularly 
leads assemblies and pupils learn about a suitable range of religious, moral and 
global issues as they move through the school. (Ysgol Penarlag)

4.3 A regular programme of assemblies, alongside curriculum work promotes the 
development of pupils’ moral, spiritual and social skills well. For example, older pupils 
develop an understanding of conflict and peace through their work about the peace 
activist Malala. A systematic programme of lessons ensures that pupils develop a 
strong understanding of their own identity and an appreciation of other cultures. Staff 
encourage pupils to share their home language and beliefs whilst also learning what 
it is like to be a citizen in modern day Wales. The school’s work with the local 
community helps pupils to develop an appropriate sense of cynefin. For example, 
pupils gain a strong sense of belonging through their work on ‘The Seven Wonders of 
Mold.’ (Ysgol Bryn Gwalia)

4.4 Teachers provide regular opportunities for pupils to reflect on their values and 
beliefs, and those of others. They plan thoughtful opportunities for pupils to learn about 
different countries and cultures. (Ysgol Bryn Deva) 

4.5 The school provides regular opportunities for pupils to reflect on the values and 
beliefs of others. Through lessons and assemblies, staff ensure pupils have 
opportunities to discuss and share their opinions on responsibility and children’s rights, 
helping them to develop their spiritual, moral and social understanding (Ysgol Bryn 
Deva)

5. Inspection Area: Leadership and Management 

5.1 The headteacher is a strong role model who sets the strategic direction for the 
school accurately. Her sensitive and efficient leadership has a positive impact on all 
areas of the school.  (Queensferry CP)

5.2 Senior leaders and the governing body have worked together well to create a 
vibrant school environment that promotes inclusion, equality and pupils’ well-being 
successfully. The headteacher leads the school efficiently. (Ysgol Penarlag)

5.3 The headteacher provides highly effective, compassionate leadership, which 
promotes the well-being of all successfully. As a result, most pupils have high levels of 
self-esteem and staff feel appreciated. (Ysgol Bryn Gwalia) 

Tudalen 11



5.4 Governors also use their own expertise to support school progress effectively. For 
example, governors’ work to monitor curriculum developments led to improvements in 
the school’s provision for cynefin. (Ysgol Bryn Gwalia) 

5.5 The headteacher provides strong and effective leadership. Since taking up the post, 
the headteacher has worked in collaboration with pupils, staff, governors and parents to 
establish a clear vision for the school based on nurturing pupils’ well-being, with a focus 
on happiness, health and safety. (Ysgol Bryn Deva) 

6. Pilot Inspection Reporting - Main findings 

6.1 School leaders have succeeded in bringing two schools together with a shared 
sense of purpose. They have achieved this in the face of notable challenges over recent 
times. (Ysgol y Waun and Ysgol Gwernymynydd) 

6.2 Leaders are working to improve pupils’ understanding of Welsh heritage, culture and 
language. They provide opportunities for Criw Cymraeg to lead assemblies that aim to 
boost pupils’ awareness and use of the Welsh language. (Ysgol y Waun and Ysgol 
Gwernymynydd) 

6.3 Leaders have begun to develop pupils’ appreciation of Welsh culture through the 
celebration of Welsh events such as Diwrnod Santes Dwynwen and an annual school 
Eisteddfod. Pupils learn traditional Welsh songs in expressive arts lessons and the choir 
are preparing for a Dydd Gwyl Dewi celebration. (Ysgol Treffynnon)

6.4 Pupils develop their spiritual, moral, social and cultural awareness suitably through 
a range of activities. (Ysgol Treffynnon) 

6.5 The headteacher has a clear vision for the school based on caring for and valuing 
everyone in the school community. He provides passionate and committed leadership 
and is a strong role model who has high expectations of himself and others. (Ysgol 
Treffynnon) 

Tudalen 12



Flintshire County Council
Standing Advisory Council for Religion, Values and Ethics 

 Constitution, Functions, Working Arrangements and Procedures
(adopted from the Handbook, from the Wales Association Standing Advisory 

Councils on Religious Education)

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Introduction

Why is there a Standing Advisory Council for Religion, Values, and Ethics?

The Council has a duty to constitute and apply a Standing Advisory Council (SAC) on 
Religion, Values and Ethics. From September 2026 the SAC will replace the existing 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE). Currently both 
committees co-exist with same membership.

The SAC is set up to represent a balance of all the interests of the local community. 
Flintshire SAC, following its predecessor SACRE, is a partnership for good religion, 
values and ethics,(RVE) and is made up of representatives from religious and non- 
religious belief communities, teachers’ associations, and the local authority. It may 
also have co-opted members. Professional support to the SAC is provided by a 
specialist RVE Adviser and the Council’s Chief Education Officer or their 
representative.  

RE and collective worship are statutory requirements of education in Wales and have 
been since 1944. At that same time Local Education Authorities (LEAs) were 
empowered by law to set up a Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education, 
known in short as a SACRE. In 1988, when RE was confirmed as part of the basic 
curriculum, LEAs had a legal duty laid upon them to appoint a SACRE. The purpose of 
a SACRE is to advise the LEA (now local authority/LA) on matters concerned with the 
provision of RE and collective worship. RE is the only compulsory subject in schools 
which remains locally determined and must be given in accordance with an Agreed 
Syllabus. Moving forward, the SAC will continue to work with the LA to determine 
the Agreed Syllabus and support offered to schools.

With the introduction of the Curriculum for Wales, Religion, Values, and Ethics (RVE) 
is a statutory requirement of the Curriculum for Wales and is mandatory for all 
learners from ages 3 to 16. RVE forms part of the Humanities Area. This Area 
encompasses geography; history; religion, values, and ethics; business studies; social 
studies. These disciplines share many common themes, concepts, and transferable 
skills, whilst having their own discrete body of knowledge and skills.

Tudalen 13

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6



RVE within the Curriculum for Wales can offer a distinctive contribution to the 
realisation of the four purposes for all learners. As such, this guidance supports 
schools and settings in developing provision for RVE that prepares learners in Wales 
for life and work in a fast-changing and diverse world, as responsible and informed 
citizens.

What is the composition of a SAC?

The structure of a SAC is defined by law (WO Circular 10/94 Para 102) and is made up 
of three “committees” as follows:

The numbers of members in each of the committees are set out in the SAC’s 
constitution. (Membership is decided by the Authority, considering local 
circumstances and in collaboration with the organisations and communities 
represented).

Committee A
Representatives of Christian denominations and other religions and their 
denominations reflecting the principle religious traditions of the area. Since 2018, on 
the Direction of the Welsh Government Cabinet Minister for Education, humanists 
can be full members of this Committee as well as other belief groups analogous* to 
religious beliefs.
*'To be “analogous” we consider the non-religious beliefs must in accordance with 
case law under the European Convention of Human Rights and the Human Rights Act 
1998 attain the necessary level of cogency, seriousness, cohesion, and importance to 
attract protection under the Convention Rights.'

Committee B: Representatives of teachers’ associations

Committee C: Representatives of the local authority

Each of these “committees” has equal voting rights and each “committee” has a 
single vote.  

1.0  Constitution  

1.1 Committee A membership

(a) Representing Religious Denominations and non-religious representatives 
upon the nomination by the following:-

 Two by the Church in Wales (St Asaph Diocese)
 Two by the Roman Catholic Church (Wrexham Diocese)

Tudalen 14



 One by the Presbyterian Church of Wales (English – Cheshire Flint & Denbigh   
Presbytery)

 One by the Presbyterian Church of Wales (Welsh – Cheshire Flint & Denbigh 
Presbytery)

 One by the Methodist Church (North Wales District)
 One by the Union of Welsh Independents (Dwyrain Dinbych A Fflint 

Association)
 One by the United Reformed Church (North Wales District)
 Two representative bodies of non-religious philosophical  conviction.

1.2  Committee B membership

(b) Representing Teacher Associations by eight nominations by the Flintshire 
Headteacher Federations to represent the following phases of education: -

 One secondary headteacher
 Two primary headteachers  
 One secondary RVE specialist 
 Two primary classroom teachers
 One special school representative
 One college representative Deeside VI

1.3 Committee C membership 

(c) Representing the Education Authority, the eight representatives of Flintshire 
County Council, are appointed through the Annual Meeting of the Council.

(d) Co-opted Members as follows:

(i) Co-opted members as the SAC may decide will assist it in the performance of 
its functions, up to a maximum of five such members.   
(ii)     Co-opted members will not have a vote
(iii)    Co-opted members will be elected annually  

2. Terms of Office and Related Matters

2.1 Subject to the provisions of 2.2 and 2.3 below, all members 
appointed to the SAC as in 1.0 above, will hold office until 31st August 
in the year of the election of County Councillors, or until they resign, or until 
their successors are appointed, whichever is the earlier.

2.2 Any member of the SAC appointed by the LA may be removed from 
membership of the SAC if in the opinion of the LA he/she ceases to be 
representative of the religious denomination or teacher association which 
he/she was appointed to represent, or (as the case may be) of the LA.

Tudalen 15



2.3 A co-opted member of the SAC shall hold office upon such terms as may be 
determined by the SAC.

2.4. Any member may at any time resign his/her office by giving written notice to 
that effect to the clerk to SAC.

3.0 FUNCTIONS

3.1 The principal responsibilities and functions will be as prescribed under the 
provisions of the 1988 and 1993 Education Acts, and The Curriculum and 
Assessment (Wales) Act 2021 (the Act). The Act established the Curriculum 
for Wales in law and replaced the basic curriculum (which includes, for 
example, the national and local curricula set out in Part 7 of the Education 
Act 2002). The Act makes provision about progression and assessment in 
connection with the curriculum for 3 to 16 year olds. 

(a)  to advise the LA upon matters connected with religious worship in county 
schools and the teaching and learning of RVE to be given in accordance with 
an agreed syllabus (including methods of teaching, the choice of teaching 
material, and the provision of teacher training)  including: the mandatory RVE 
provision for learners aged 3-6 in all maintained schools and non-maintained 
nursery settings and  the provision of optional RVE for sixth formers which 
will come into effect in September 2027

(b)  to monitor and support the effective provision of RVE in schools and 
consider whether any changes need to be made to an agreed syllabus or in 
the support offered to schools.  This role includes the review of existing 
provision. SAC can provide advice on methods of teaching, choice of teaching 
materials, provision of teaching training and any other mattes the LA refers to 
it or as the SAC sees fit.  

(c)  to monitor the provision of daily collective worship in schools, and to 
consider any action which might be taken to improve such provision.  SAC can 
provide advice on collective worship in community schools and foundation 
schools which do not have a religious character

(d)  to determine, on application by the Headteacher of a county school, 
whether the requirement of Christian collective worship under section 6 of 
the 1988 Act shall not be applied, in whole or in part, in that school. 

Having first consulted the governing body, the headteacher can apply to SAC 
to have the broadly Christian requirement disapplied, that is, to be released 
from the requirements for acts of worship to be wholly, mainly of a broadly 
Christian character, if the school composition might require this.  

(e)  to consider such matters as may be referred to them by the LA.

Tudalen 16



(f)  to require the LA to convene to a Conference under the provisions of 
Schedule 5 of the Education Act 1944 for the purpose of reviewing the RVE 
Agreed Syllabus adopted by the LA

(g)  to review information on schools following inspection by the Office of His 
Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Schools in Wales (ESYYN)

(h)  to offer advice to the LA on such matters not referred to SAC by the LA, 
but which are related to the SAC’s functions.

(i)  to publish an Annual Report on the work of SAC covering the academic 
year, specifying any matters on which they have advised the LA, broadly 
describing the nature of that advice, and setting out the reasons for offering 
any advice on any matters not referred to the SAC by the LA in the first place; 
The report to be presented to Wales Government annually by 30 December.

(j) in accordance with the provisions of the 1993 Act, a copy of the Annual 
Report is to be sent to WASACRE (Wales Association Standing Advisory 
Councils on Religious Education)  

4.0 WORKING ARRANGEMENTS

4.1 Appointment of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson at the first meeting the 
SAC shall appoint a Chairperson and a Vice-Chairperson from amongst their 
members.

4.2 The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall not be appointed from the same 
representative group of members.

4.3 The electing of such Chairpersons and Vice-Chairpersons from a rotating 
pattern of the three representative groups should be followed.

4.4 The provision of 4.3 above does not prevent a previous Chairperson or Vice-
Chairperson from being eligible for re-election.

5.0 Officers of the Local Authority 

5.1 The LA will appoint a clerk to the SAC.

5.2 The Director of Education and/or his/her representatives shall be entitled to 
attend all meetings of the SAC.

5.3 The Religion, Values and Ethics  Education Adviser for the time being of the 
LA shall be the Adviser to the SAC.

Tudalen 17



6.0 Specialist Speakers

6.1 The SAC may, if it so wishes, arrange the attendance at a meeting of a 
specialist speaker who is not a member of the SAC.

6.2 Each or any of the representative groups may require the attendance of a 
specialist speaker who is not a member of the SAC, but only for the period 
during which any relevant matter is under consideration and provided that at 
notice of such requirement is given to the Clerk for inclusion in the agenda 
for the meeting.

7.0 Meetings

7.1 The SAC shall meet at least once in each school term, and at other times as 
may be required.

7.2 Each member of SAC shall be given by the Clerk, at least five working days 
written notice of the date, time, and place of the meeting, with the agenda 
and any relevant papers being despatched at least three clear working days in 
advance of the meeting.  

7.3 In accordance with the statutory regulations, public notice will be given for all 
meetings of the SAC and Agreed Syllabus Conference, and both meetings will 
be open to members of the public, unless there are matters under discussion 
which would be more appropriately discussed in private.  All relevant 
documents for a meeting should also be available for members of the public 
attending, and for public inspection at other times. 

8.0 Chairing of Meetings

8.1 If both the Chairperson and the Vice-Chairperson are absent from a meeting, 
a person to take the Chair for the meeting shall be appointed upon the 
collective consent of the members present at the meeting.  Should the 
Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson arrive during the rest of the meeting, the 
appointed substitute will hand over to them as soon as the item under 
discussion on their arrival is completed.

9.0 Quorum

9.1 The quorum for a meeting shall be one-third (rounded up to the nearest 
whole number) of the total membership.

10.0 Voting Procedures

10.1 It will be for the SAC to work based on consensus if it feels that this will 
facilitate effective and smooth working procedures.

Tudalen 18



10.2 However, if there is not a consensus, or whenever a representative group 
requests to do so, voting should in accordance with the prescribed procedure 
of one vote for each representative group.

10.3 In such a case, the representative group will determine how they are to cast 
their single vote by a majority decision of the members of that group.

10.4 Members of each of the representative groups shall regulate their own 
proceedings and may meet separately as a group if they so choose.

11.0 Validity of Proceedings

11.1 The validity of proceedings of the SAC or of any representative group with the 
SAC shall not be affected: -
(a) by any vacancy in the membership of the SAC or of a representative 
group.

(b) on the ground that a member of the SAC appointed to represent any 
denomination or association does not at the time of the proceedings 
represent the denomination or association in question.   

11.2   The constitution is based on the most recent national guidance arising from 
the Wales Association of Standing Advisory Councils on Religious Education 
(WASACRE), currently edition March 2021.  

Draft May 2024

Tudalen 19



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol


	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	4 Dadansoddiad o Adroddiadau Arolygu
	6 Cylch Gorchwyl Drafft y Cyngor Ymgynghorol Sefydlog

